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INDECISION AND STRESS: 1950-1952

Following the faflure of the North Korean attack on South Korea
and the failure of the Chineee Communists to drive UN forces from
Korea, Soviet leaders grew increasingly concerned about US rearma-
ment and US-inspired integration of Western defense efforts. They
apparently became particularly concerned about the establighment of
US bases in various peripheral areas of the USSR. In spite of this,
Soviet policy remained sterile and provocative. No new policy for- .
milas were developed to meet the new situation. There is reason to
believe that, as the months passed, this problem became more and
more critical and controversy developed over Stalin's continuing in-~
flexible line in foreign affairs. ‘

Concurrently, the eritical iubernational situe.tion apparently
eomplicated Boviet internal planning pro‘blems. Revisions in the
draft Five Year Plan and subsequent efforts to re-draft the plan in
1950 and 1951 pro‘bably reflected top level indecision regarding
‘overall Soviet policy in this new situation and possibly conflict
among the top Soviet leaders.

Meanwhile ’ domstic controversy on Soviet agricultural policy
broke into the open in March 1951. There is reason to believe that .
Politburo mewber Khrushchev attempted to inaugurate a drastic change
in agricultural policy, and that this program was opposed by one or
uore Politburo wmembers. Speculatively, it is suggested that Malenkov

. backed Khrushchev, but only to a point, while Beris was the leading
figure in opposition.

In August 1951, the replacement of V. 8. A‘bahmov by 8. b.
Igoatiev as Chief of the MGB probably removed the MIB from Beria's

- area of responsibility, representing the first major upset in the

power balance that had existed among the Politburo members since

. Zhdanov's death. Judging from the secrecy eloaking this shift end

fron a atatement published in September 1952, it is believed that
the . issue involved was that of Party control over the MiB.

Later, in .So_v-iet Georgia, a series of purge_s began which elim-
inated mwen who had held positions of influence there for wmany years.

It 18 believed that this shake-up reflected adversely on Beria, who

bhad retained overlordship in Georgian affairs since his departure .

- from Georgia in 1938. Opinions differ as to whether Ma.lenkcv,
Stalin himself, initiated these purges.




In February 1952, Stalin began the series of lettere, publisghed
in October 1952 es The Economic Problems of Socialism, which consti-
tuted both ideological pronocuncements and observations on current '
problems, Several analysts have interpreted the portions dealing
with current problems as revealing significant controversy within
Stalin's immediate entourage on fundamental issues , notably on the
foreign policy question. The immediate challenge to Stalin's inflex-
ible and provocative. foreign policy was overruled but subsequent de~ |
velopmeunts suggest that the basic conflict was not resolved. The de-
cision to proceed full-speed with the Sovietization of Eastern Gemany
(evidently dating from. June 1952) indicated & further hardening of
Soviet foreign policy, for it necessarily involved rejection of any
poseibility of negotiation on Germa.ny.

In ea.rly 1952, Soviet leaders again ordered the drafting of a
five-year plan. This order appeared to reveal that definite deci-
sions regarding both foreign and domestic policy had been taken. A
There were indications of controversy regarding the plan; the deci-
sions taken 414 not appear to resolve the fundamental questions that
are presumd to have existed

By at lee.st June 1952, Stalin himself began to mnifest an un-
usually high level of personal activity. In July, he held an inter-
view with an Italian fellow-traveller, Pietro Nenni, unusual in that

Neoni did not seek the interview and it was suggested by Soviet of-

ficials. Iater, Stalin began to meet foreigners more frequently
than he had done at any time since the war. He apparently did not

“take his regular vacation at Sochi in the fall, for he a.ppea.red at

Bino-Soviet treaty ceremonies in Sep'bember, the Party Congress’ in
October and. the anniversary ceremonies on 7 November, | 1

This uvnusually high level of personal activity manifested by
Stalin continued until his very death. In February 1953 ’ for emmple

he held three interview with foreigners, two of these with ambassa-.
dors. :

Sometime 1_n uid-1952, Soviet leaders decided to convoke thg .
19th Party Congress. The announcement was made on 20 August, and . !
the Congress was scheduled to begin on. 5 October. The brief period
between the announcement and the opéning late of the conference, as
vell as the apparent haste evidenced in the organization of the var-

{ous Repu‘blic congresses preliminary to the All-Unien Congress, sug-

gested a relatively sudden decision. . The Congress 1tself was appar-
ently dominated by Malenkov: The principal speeches of the Congress
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vere delivered by Malenkov and by two men who are believed to have
been assoclates or proteges at that time, Khrushchev and Saburov.
Changes in Party organization and Central Committee membership
vhich were effected at the Congress -appeared to work to Malenkov's
advantage; furthermore, several of Berid's important assoclates
either disappeared or were reduced from full to alternate mem’bership
on the Central Committee..

In the. period from the Octo'ber Pa.rt.y Congress to stalin s death,
a series of events took place which appeared to reflect high politi- .
cal tension, behind-the-scenes waneuvering and the beginning of ra.pid
personnel changes in. important posts. These events, along with the

oninous Doctors'® Plot aunouncement, appear to indicate that a politi-
cal crisis had finslly developed.

In addition to the above, there were indica.tions of changea in
the relationships and responsibilitiea of the top Presidium figures.’
Foremost, of course, was the increasing prominence accordea Malenkov, -
Ambasgador Kennan reported.in June 1952 that the “"bets were running

. toward Malenkov," indicating that Soviet officials recognized his

increasing stature. Other changes took place, hovIever, vhich remain
obscure and unexplained.

- 1. In December 1952, there was fragmentary evidence
that agricultural reports were
B responsibility had previously been

bhlenkov Be -

2. -In February 1953, I. G. Kabanov vas identified as Chief
of Gossnab which, as late as November 1951 and poasi‘bly Ma.y '
1952, had been hea.ded by Q_Enovic .

3 In Febrm.ry 1953 ”

[:} suggest_ing tha_.t Molotov wa.s cougerned vithrail*ftranspmw

FOREIGN POLICY: STALEMATE AND FRUSTRATION

With the collapse of the North Korean Army in September 1950, .
the Soviet leaders were faced with the dilemma of either losing all
of Korea or of attewpting to salvage the situation by allowing or
persuading the Chinese Commmists to enter the conflict. The latter
course was chosen, In spite.of their initial successes, however,

the Chinese Communigts were unable to drive UN.forces out of Koree..
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Meanvhile, the Korean attack and the subsequent Chinese Commu-
nist intervention had provoked the US into an extensive rearmament
program, had further stimulated US efforts to strengthen Western:
Europe 's military forces, and. had a.ccelerated the NAHK) ‘bage program
in Europe and Africa. .

: The 1unnedia‘be Soviet reaction to these developments was one of o
alarm, rage and frustration. This was exemplified in Pospelov's .

21 January 1951 speech, which touched off what later was to be known

as the Hate-America camwpaign..: The US Embagsy in Moscow noted that

this speech marked a shift in propaganda'frm the theme of the inev-
'1tability of capitalism's economic collapse to that of its defeat E
through var. The euwbassy further noted that this speech carrfed no
assurances that the USSR could finally win without war or that the

Soviet peoples would escape involvement. BRage and frustration were

also evident in Stalin's 16 February 1951 interview with a Pravda
con'espondent in which he repeatedly and bluntly ealled Clewent , S
Attlee, then Prime Minister of Great Britain, a liar, and gave no ' )
hint of diplomatic negotiations or compromise. Stalin declared that

peace could be preserved omly if "peace-loving peoples" of Western

countries would take its preseivation into their own hands -~ aga.inst

the policy of their readtionmary goverunments.

However, initial Soviet feelers with regard to & cease-fi.re in
Korea were made in April 1951. In April and May, military operations
had culminated in massive Chinese Communist offensives, which were
decipively beaten. As a result of these defeats, Soviet hopes that
the Chinese might be victorious were probably dispelled. Malik's
cease-fire proposal followed in wid-June, and the cease-fire talks
‘began ahortly ‘thereafter.

The truce talks soon bogged down over Communist insistence on
the 38th Parallel as the demarcation line, . The Communists concur-
rently were preparing anotheér major offensive, which accumulated
evidence indicated was schednled for early September 1951. This of-
fensive wvas apparently suspended at the last minute and, since UN
operations at that time were not large enough to prejudice the of-
fensive, the suspension probably represented a major policy decision.
The truce talks were resumed at the end of October 1951, and pro-
gressed slowly until another stalemate developed in 1952 over the
prisoner-of -war question. Thie stalemate prevailed until after
S'calin s death. : ’

In Europe, negotiations between the USSR, the UK, France aml
the US resulted in the prolonged and abortive Deputy Foreign Minis-
. ters weetings in Paris from April through June 1951, While the con-
ference originally was intended to discuss the German question, the
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also suggested by several events that took place between March and
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Soviet delegation insistently attempted to introduce the queastion of
NATO bases. In September 1951, the Soviet Union undertook an intense
diplomatic campaign, officially protesting to a nmumber of European
powers with regard to EDC and FATO bases. In Germany, & renewed
propaganda caumpaign wvas begun in September for unification and e .
peace treaty, standard Soviet propaganda themes since the early post-
var years,

‘Within the USSR, there vere & number of indications of apprehen-
sion over and dissatisfaction with the uncoupromising and inelastic.
Stalinist foreign policy. Obsgervers of the Soviet Union are umani- ' .
mous in the opinion that US rearmament, Western consolidation and the |
progress made in establishing HATO bases constituted a growing and,
finally, daninating preoccupation of Soviet leaders through 1951 a.nd
1952. Furthermore, the inexplicdble shifts in Korea suggest that
conflicting political tendencies were operating. This was equally
evident in Soviet press discussion of fareign affairs, vhere there
wvas no attempt, as Ambassador Kennan observed in Jume 1952, to re-
concile contra.dictory points of view regarding future foreign devel-

Stalin's letter of February 1952, vwhich formed the wmain piece
of his Economic Problems of Socialism, discussed some of these ques-
tions, but arrived at no nmew policy formula, Stalin reaffirmed that
the West was incapable of achieving lasting unity and- that, regard-
less of Soviet intransigence, the "peace" movement and the Vest'
own economic disputes would arouse enough disagreement in the Western
world to assure its final collapse.

In this letter, Stalin identified what might be ca.lled "opposi-
tion" points of view on foreign policy when he said that "some com-
rades" believe wars between capitalist states are no longer inevi-
table,. He denled as "heretical” the following points of view: the
Us was successfully 1n1:egrating the non-Soviet Orbit powers; capi-
talisgt leaders had learned from disastrous experience to avold fu-
ture wars; and "mpermlism ‘must attack the USSR. The foreign pol-
icy position adopted by Stalin in the February 1952 letter was mmch
quieter in tone apd content than that of one year earlier. The let-
ter was a tension-reducing statement, affirming that there was no .
immediate danger of Western attack, but also giving no hint of forth-
coming concessions to the West. Stalin's position was one of no ad-
ventures, but equa.lly, no retreats. '

. Vacillation and possible dissension on the German question are
June 1952. In March, the USSR proposed a draft peace treaty for
Germany vhich embodied several significant shifts from the previous
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Soviet position. Mr. Kennan bas interpreted the draft trea.ty pro-
posal as possibly representing the temporary triumph of a "negotia-
tion" school of thought in Moscow. Subsequent diplomatic exclianges,
however, came to nothing. In June 1952 the Soviet Ambassador to the -
Germwan Democratic Republic, G. M. Pushkin, was replaced by I. I. ’
Ilichev. 1In July, & harsh Sovietization program was finally inaugu-
rated, involving collectivization, increased attention to the crea-
tion of an East German army, intensified gecurity measures and the

- sealing od?f of the GDR from West Germany. ,

Thus, Soviet poltcy on Germany finally cryatallized; and re-
~ straints which previocusly bad held back the conversion of the GDR
into a nocmal“ Satellite disappea.red

INDECISION' IN INDIBTRIAL PIANNIBG

" There is cousiderable evidence | J
that Soviet industrial planners were vpon to draft the second
rost-war five year plan at least three times, in 1950, in 1951 and

in 1952, It should have gone into operatiqn in January 1951, but 1t
was not even announced dntil August 1952.L

Preparation for the five year plan presumably began on schedule
in 1950. The first. specific, indieation of indecision appeared-in
‘October 1950, which referred to a 16 .Septetber prap
a.newdra.f‘bfor the. ﬁve year.plan be dra.wnup. j

Tu 1951, there were several references . |
m’%‘cb suggested that the planning BAQ_beenl BYart )

ch of that year.

8 was repeated: yet another time, - D
pamt?n ‘of.a "new Stalin Five:

C i

- 1/ As of this vriting the Fifth Five Year Plan, announced in August
. g . 1952 and approved at the QOctober Party Congress, has not yet been
ratified by the Supreme Soviet.

e | Ini952,

2/ Curiously, +this;was:notsto be the title of theinew plan:as-gn-
- nounced- 1n August: 1952; 1t was -called: gimply the "Fifth Five'Year -
Plan of Development of the USSR." »
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versation of April 1952, in vhich the Moscow: speak:er -gaids = L4 .aveu,
immediately with the Industrial Finance Plan.,.the CounciliofiMin--.
‘1aters checks. us each day. Now this 1s a matter not of:iproduction.:
but ra.ther one-of political chsre.c'ber. Lee.ve immediately byiplaner. .

100‘

—

'Stalin' discussé'd 1ndﬁsfrial plans in his Economic Problems of ..

Socisliem. Again the document of chief interest is his February
1952 letter, gince subsequent: letters uwerely elaborated one or

another aspect of the firgt one. As in the case of foreign policy

questions, Stalin werely ‘reaffirmed and defended the prevailing

course cf Soviet policy, rejecting "radical® solutions of either ,'j
‘extreme. In other words, s he defended the standing policy of investu- .

wents in the capital goods industries, and rejected the possi‘bility
of major changes, either in favor of heavier investment in armament
pro;luctien or in consumer goods

It will be recalled that the Soviet rearmament program, begun
in 1948, was probably scheduled for completion i{n late 1951 or early -
1952. It thus seems very likely that the issue of the future em-
‘phagis of the investuwent program was sidetracked, i.e., that it was
postponed until the rearmament program neared completion and until
it became evident whether or not the USSR was faced with a serious
possibility of war. Stalin apparently decided in late 1951 or early
1952 that circumgtances did not call for major increases in Soviet
armaments investment; yet, in making this decision, he was appar-

ently subjected to considersble pressure to expand significantly the_',_; :

production of consumers goods. This he refused to do.

- CONTROVERSY ON AGRICULIURE

- It will be recaned that in February 1950 Politburo mem‘ber ;
Andreev was criticized for defending small-scale farming operations »

and that su‘bsequently N. S. Khrushehev, also a Politburo member, 'be- .

came the leadipg Soviet spokesman on agiricultural policy. On
25 April 1950, Khrushchev began a new policy of werging small col-

lective farms into larger ones; later, a Party Central Committee de-' ‘

" cree apparently .applied this: policy to the whole USSR.

The new agrieultural policy provided for more than Just admin-

- istrative werger of the kolkhozes. On’ 28 January 1951 Khrushchev

- in a speech advocated not only the mwerger of the kolkhozes, but also

the’ actual resettlement of peasants belonging to the wmerged kolkhozes

. 1n single "urban" centers, known as "agro-cities". The personal
plots of land possessed by the individual peasants were to be located
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on the outskirts of the new settlement, thus contributing to the
"proleta.rianization" of the pea.santry.

. Soviet press treatment of two Khrushchev speeches on new agri-
. cultural policy provides the first indication that the new policy
‘way have run into trouble. He delivered a wmajor speech on the wmerger
" of the kolkhozes on 20 December 1950, but it wae not published until -
.. 8 February 1951. A second speech on 28 January 1951, in which be
. discussed the agro-city proposal, was not published until 4 March..
Pravda, which published this speech, carried a curious editorial note
" the followiug day stating that Khrushchev's article had been run as
- material for. diacussion, ‘thus mply:lng that 11: was not a sta.tement

of policy.

"Discussion” .wa._s not long dela.yed. A speech delivered 'by G. A.
Arutyunov of Soviet Armenia, published in the Armenian Kommunist
(daily newspaper) on 21 March, had this to say: "In connection with
amalgamation of small col].ective farms, some comrades have. made
statements sowing confusion...(they declare) that one of the m.in
problems of the amalgamated farms 18 to move smwall villages, i.e.,

- merge the population of small villages and resettle it in one vil-

" lage....I am of the opinion that these proposals are closer to fan-
tasy than to the real requirements of the collective farms....I
will not dwell on other. unaccepta.ble proposals...(regarding) reduc-
ing private garden plote....

On 26 May 1951, Bakinskif Ra.‘bochii of Baku pu‘blished a speech
of M. D. A, Bagirov, First Secretary’ of the Coumunist Party of Soviet
' Azerbaijan, in which Bagirov asserted that the "Party had demanded
en end” to the "incorrect idea"™ that the most important task in kol-
khoz construction was the moving of emall villages into ‘single kol-
khoz settlements. He also said that the practice of reducing the
sigze of the garden plot near the peasant's home and moving part of
his plot beyond settlement limits was harmful and intolerable, Most

- euriously, when Pravda published Bagirov 8 speech on 29 May 1951 it
omitted this aspect.

Follawing the above developuneuts, the agro-city concept disap-
peared from prominence, but the program of kolkhoz amalgamation con-
tinued, Malenkov, at the 19th Party Congress in October 1952, as-
serted that, as a result of the merger program, the number of.
collective fams had been reduced from 25%,000 to 97 ,000. With re-

. gard to the agro-city program, Malenkov said that "certain of our
leading officials have indulged in a wvrong approach,"” their migtake
being that they had “"overlooked" the main task, i.e., agricultural
production. Stalin, in his Econowmlc Problems of Socialism, avoided
direct mention of the agro-city policy but, in discussing the
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elimination of essential diﬁ’erences between “"town and country,"

-8aid that "new great towns will appear as centers of the maximm
development of culture, and as centers not only of large-scale in-
dustry, but alsoc of the processing of agricultural produce...and
will tend to even up couditions of life in town and country.” He
discussed the agricultuml ‘problem at length in each of his letters
(February, April, May and September). In general, Stalin's discus-
sion envisaged the ultimate eliwination of the "free market” aspects
of Soviet agriculture and the expansion of so-called "product ex-
change" as the ideal market relationship between kolkhozes and the
rest of the economy. This- "product-exchange” is simply a form of
barter which takes place between the kolkhozes and the Soviet Gov-
ermment., Stalin envisaged that product-exchange would eventually
displace all forms of marketing engeged in by the kolkhozes.  How-
‘ever, Stalin repeatedly emphasized the long-term nature of this pro-
gram a.nd stressed- the necessity for ‘proceeding slowly and ca}xtiously.'

" Meanvhile, throughout the period under reviev, lenkov_a:!_
Andreev, too, ned &s

ounc or Kolkhoz Affairs. Andreev, it will dbe
reca.lled, wvas no longer the Politburo spokesman for agriculture s
following the censure he received in February 1950.

. The queation now is: What did these wvarious developments sig-
nify: It has been argued that the kolkhoz merger and agro-city pro-
posals had been originated by Stalin himself, and then withdrawn
vhen they ran into peasant resistance. . Some observers have’ ‘consid-
ered the agro-city program to have been an experiment in developing
a nev form of agricultural organization. A third hypothesis is that

" the wmerger and agro-city proposals had been advanced by some one fig-

ure or another below Stalin, and these proposa.ls met with disagreement
within the Politburo. While the problems involved in these hypotheses
cannot be definitely answered, some possibilities can be suggested.

The handling of the agro-city proposal in Arutyunov s and
Bagirov's. speeches suggests that 1t also was intended to be Union-
wide. The fact that the agro-city proposel was rejected so promptly
after its inauguration, without allowing tiwe for the "experiment"”
to run its course, also suggests that it had not been conceived as
an experimental prograwm. :

It seems unlikely that the merger program and agro-city pro-
posals were merely experimental in nature. The merger prograu,
vhile begun in the Moscow Oblast, was not limited to 1t, but rather

vas applied Union-vide later in the same year. This is’evident{ — |
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I v | Furthermore, as previously noted
cree was_issued on the subject. Iastly,

.the program was continued even after the agro-city proposal was re-

pudiated. With regard to the agro-city proposal, it also appears

that this was not an experimental program, although the evidence 1n'
this case is less deﬁnite.

These latter considerations also argue against the idea that the
agro-city proposal-was one which had been originated by Stalin, and -

then. abandoned in the face of widespread peasant resistance. In par-

ticular, it 1s very unlikely that Arutyunov and Bagirov would have =

discussed it in such strong language (i.e., "fantastic" and “unaccep-

table" proposals) if the program had been initiated personally by

 Stalin.

There is good rea.aon‘to suppose that both the kolkhoz merger and
the.agro-city proposals originated with Khrushchev: It was Khrushchev
vho tock over from Andreev in 1950 the position of Politburo spokes-
man on agriculture. Secondly, the kolkhoz merger progrem was begum -
by Khrushchev in Moscow Oblast at least by April 1950, and it was not
until later that year that a Central Comittee decree vas 1seued on
the subject. This suggests that Khrushchev had begun the program in
Moscow Oblast before it was All-Union Party policy. Finally, Khrush-
chev, in his three speeches on the merger program and the agro-city

proposal, continually cited illustrative experiences from the U!:raine, ‘

vhere he had been First Secretary from 1938 to 1949 (except for a
brief period in 1947), suggesting that he was attempting to sell, on
an All-Union basis, ’ policies he had previously developed in the ’
Ukraine.

The last qnestion concerns the nature and 1dent1ﬁoa.tion of op-
position to the agro-city proposal It is genmerally conceded. that
Arutyunov and Bagirov had Politburo level support before they wade
their speeches denouncing the agro-city proposal. Likewise, the

" curious editorial note opening Khrushchev's 28 Jaunuary 1951 gpeech

"for discussion” is considered to be highly irregular and possibly
indicative of top-level diseeneion. ‘Lastly, it way be noted that
Khrushchev, unlike Andreev the year previous, was not required to
apologize or recant for his "incorrect® views. -

.¥ho formed this opposition? ' Andreev had been humiliated the
previous year (1950) -and he did not reappear as & prominent figure
following repudiation of Khrushchev in 1951. Malenkov had been, and

" 8till was at the time of the dispute, actively concerned with agri-

cultural problems,
nor did he losge .3 ollowing Khrushchev's

repudiation. Neither Malenkov nor Stalin, in their respectiye
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statemeuts on the subject in 1952, criticized the agro-city concept
.per_se; Malenkov, it is true, did criticize it 1n terms of timing.

One clue is provided by the allegation that Beria exercised
overlordship over the Soviet Transcaucasus, within which are both .

. Soviet Armenia and Azerbaija.n, as well as Georgia. Thus it may have -
been the case that Arutyunov and Bagirov, in their attacks on '
Khrushchev's proposals were gpeaking with Beria's approval and. .
8Uppo: 8 reparted a close association be-
tween 3y ' ' igirov likewise has been reported on -
close terms with Beria, a.lthough there is conflicting evidence on

" this point

o mmcmmm OF THE MINISTER OF STATE SECURITY

In August of 1951, a development of major importance took place
when Minister of State Security Abakumov was replaced by S. D.
Ignatiev, a Commmist Party functionary. Abakumov had held this
position since July 1946. Following his replacement, at least nine
Republic MGB Ministers were replaced, while four new Deputy Minis- |
ters appeared at the Ministry in Moscow. One of these s the Deputy
 Minister for Personnel, was identified :
g[asjl.~ A. Epishev, who, like Ignaticv; a

y functionary rather than a career security officer. Epishev

had earlier been a prominent Pa.rty official with Khrushchev 1n the
Ukraine.

These Party e.ppointments , &s well as an wnusuval sta.tement 'by
the new MGB Minister in Georgia, A. I. Kochlavashvili, which was pub-.
lished in September 1952, shed some light on this shift. Kochlava-
shvili stressed the need for wore effective Party control over the

1/ This supposition vas given added weight on the occasion of Beria's.

purge. On 10 July 1952 the Pravda editorial stated: "It bas now

. been established that Beria, under various fictitious excuses, s
hindered in‘every way the solution of very important, urgent prob-
lems in the sphere of agriculture. This was done to undermine the
. collective farms and to create difficulties in the country's food
supply.” This charge was & very curious one, since Beria had
never been overtly assoclated with agriculture, nor was the charge
-gubsequently elaborated to any extent in propaganda on the Beria
case. It may be that the present leaders do not wish to go into
concrete aspects of the Beria "a.gricultural platform” for domestic .
political reasons.
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- local MGB and continued vigilance by local MGB organs., He criti- -
cized local Party organs for insufficient attention to the political
education of the security police, and declared that the Georgian
Central Comuittee had sent "experienced Party workers" into the MGB.
He promised that this practice would continue in the future. The

- umost significant aspect of Koshlavashvili's speech is its suggestion

that Party supremacy had been jeopardized by the actions &nd negli-
gence of the police; the admonition to follow Party directives and

| the trasfer of Party workers to the MiB imply that the MiB organt-

" zatlion had been becoming a law unto itself. In addition, a report
. of December 1951 asserted that Abakumov's replacement had been due -

to criticism of the security organ.

_While there is no firm informatfon on the actual reasons for
this MGB shift or on the details and remifications of it, the re-
rlacement of Abakumov by a Party figure could not have been anything
but a blow to Politburo member Beria. Abakumov was of Transcaucasian v
origin, and in 1938 was a junior security officer in the Caucasus.

In 1940 or 1941 be became Beria's counter-intelligence chief and in
- 1943, after the NEKGB ves separated from the NKVD, he becawe a Deputy
Minister of the NKGB. He replaced Merkulov as Minister in mid-1946.
.Thereafter the MGB (formerly NKGB) continued gradually to gather
- under its jurisdiction all police and militia functions.
Et:fnerm retained Politburo level responsibility for State
curity matters, at least wp to May of 1950. Beria was last assoc- °
iated with security questions in February 1951; at that time he went
to Prague for & series of conferences following the widespread ar-
rests of key men in the Czechoslovak Communist Party and Czech se-

curity apparatus .

JEE GEORGIAN PURGES

: Another area in which previous and long-standing arrangements
vere changed was in the Georgian Republic, from the latter part of
1951 through August 1952. During this period there was a couplete
reshuffling of positions, in the course of vwhich all of the Central
Comittee secretaries were changed, the Buro of the Central Coumit-
tee was completely revamped, and many of the Ministries, including
those of Internal Affairs and State Security, were given new chiefs.

The personnel shifts began in November 1951, when the Georgian
Central Coumittee removed M. I. Baramiya from his post as Second
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Secretary and expelled A. N. Rapava, Minister of Justice and former.
Minister of State Security from the Party. - Rapava and Shoniya, the .
Procurator of the Republic, were relieved of their offices and turned
over to the courts for prosecution. These actions climaxed disclo-
sures of large-scale embezzlement in one of the largest Tbilisi con-
struction trusts; the charges a@ainst the three men included the as-.
sertion that, as is "well known," they “"gave protection to various .
vorkers who had perpetrated crimes, and in every way defended them."
At the same time K. Chichinadze and V. Kuprava were removed from
their positionq in the Georgian apparatus for "mistakes in...selec~
ting cadres.” The purges continued in December 1951 and January o
'1952.. The First Secretary of the Komsomol, I. 8. Zodelave, wes Te-
moved and :nep]aced by M. Megrelishvil:l. :

© Later, a.t an April 1952 meetins of the Georgian Central Commit-

tee, vhich L. P, Beria attended, Georgian First Secretary Charkviani
vas removed from his position and replaced by A. I. Mgeladze, who
had been prominent in Komscmol work and was at the time First Secre-
tary of the Abkhaz ASSR., Charkviani, who had beld his post as
Georgian First Secretary since 1938, had presided at a Janyary meet-
ing in Tbilisi of leading officials at which economic malfeasance in.
many ministries was aired. In the words of N. Rukhadze ; the Minis-
ter of State Security, Charkviani's sin had been "a blunting of vig-
ilance and...political blindness ," which had "enabled hostile ele-
ments to ingratiate themselves, occupy responsible positions, and
inflect damage on Party work and the Georgian people."™ It was re-
ported. that Charkviani had "departed from the limits of the Repub-

" He." Couseq_uently, he was removed from the Pregidium of the Supreme
Soviet as vell as from his other’ posts. .

Charkviani's removal did not end the purge. In April 1952, the
four remaining old secretaries of the Georgian Komsomol were reumoved,
and in July, the Minister of Agricultum s the Minister of Trade and :
even Rukhadze, the Minister of State Security, fell., At the Georgian
Party Congress in Septeuber 1952, it was réevealed that nineteen gov--
ermmental officials had lost their jobs between June and August, and
that Kvirkveliyz, who had been made a Secretary of the Central Com-

lnittee only the previous December, had already lost his post

The ofﬁ.cial charges had au:rficient truth in them to constitute

a partial Justification for the complete overhaul of Georgian per-
sonnel, Economic inefficiency on the part of govermmental officials,
collusion with Party personnel,. embezzlement and other economic
crimes, and an increase in Georgian nationmalistic outbursts were, in
themselves, sufficient to condemn Party leadership in Georgia. These
charges carried over into the Georgilan Party Congress held in Septem-
ber 1952 and formed the wajor aubstance of the speeches. The cry
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vent up for vigilance agaipst economic saboteurs and intermal and
external enemies of the State who were trying to undermine socialist
advances at the behest of ’the capitalists.

There can be little doubt that this purge was directed from

ported that 5talin

i e_purge folloving a vis eTre 1u 1951; according to

Staun s visit bad in part been motivated by mounting
omors O _etivezzlement and other irregularities in Georgian affairs.’

' , Stalin may have. -

urge gan there in November.

there were rumors that the .

y directed by Malenkov, acting

assert that these purges weakened

been 1n Georgla In Septeniber 1951;

purge of Nove
ag Stalin's emissary.
Beria's poaition consi. :

Throughout the period, propaganda insisted that the purge vas
instituted under the direct guidance of Stalin and, after Beria's
attendance at the Plenum of 1 April which removed Charkviani, the
Tbilisi newspaper Zarya-Vostoka wrote that Beria "aided in...uncov-
éring the mistakes and shortcomings in the work of the Georgian
Party organizations.” The 17 April Tbilisi meeting adopted & ues-
sage t0 Beria promising him that “we will resolutely struggle against
any attempts of a hostile agency to harm the task of communist_ con-
struction and undermine the might of the Soviet State."

There is ample reason, despite Beria's presence at the April
1952 Central Committee meeting and the propagands associating him.
with the purges, for believing that the Georgian purges were an ad-
verse reflection on him. Beria has been assumed to have had a per-
sonal interest in Georgian affairs for mwany years, but Stalin, a .
Georgian by birth, had also taken a personal interest in these same
affairs. The severity of the purges may have been an indication of
Sta.lin's pereoual dissatisfaction with the course of events there.

. '.mLIN'S "ECONOMIC PROBLEMS OF SOCIALISM"

. Frequent reference has been made throughout this paper to
Stalin's Economic Probleus of Socialism, published on 2 Octocber
1952 _/ . '.[‘he publication of this document, with 1ts accompanying’

e e e S S e mm T e SR S G G e T e e e e En e e e W W S G = S e e =

_/ There will be no atteupt here to recapitulate Stalin s declaration

on particular policy problems, which were covered in the appropriate '

- gections. The attempt here, rather, is to present certain aspects
of the Economic Problems not easily discussed in the other sectioms.
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propaganda fanfare, tended to overshadow the opening of the Party
Congress three days later.

The Econouic Problems is a series of four letters, ostensibly
_written by Stalin, dated 1 February, 21 April, 22 May and 28 Septem-
ber 1952. The first letter constitutes a commentary by Stalin on
the proceedings of a conference of economists, pm'portedry held in
November 1951, which d_ijcussed a draft textbook on the politica.l
economy of Socialism." The other three letters are replies to
economists who ha.d vritten to Stalin in response to his first 1etter.

Stalin's letters discussed Communist politico-economic theory,

- the prerequisites for attaining Communism in the USSR, and the inevi-
- tability of war between capitalist states. As has already been noted,
& large part of the discussion of the transition to Commmism con-
cerned the Soviet agricultural problem and commodity exchange in the
USSR. As one study of Soviet economic theéory has pointed out,
Stalin's Economic Problems selectively summed up pertigent trends
evident in Soviet theoretical thinking since the war.2/ Another
sumary declared it to be "a theoretical grounding of policies and

an attempt to settle troubleag?e points of theory never satisfactor-

1ly reconciled with reality.”

Isaac Deutcher has noted that "the trensition from Socialism to
Communism 1is...the chief 'dou‘ble-ta_ﬂi' formuls for the discussion of
real problems" in Stalin's letters./ The author further commented:

_/ Such a textbook had long been.discussed in the USSR, but.an accept-
able book had never been produced. In 1947, Zhdanov mentioned that
one was being prepaz'ed According to Dedijer's dbiography of Pito,
Malenkov told the Yugoslave in September 1947 that Soviet theorists
were working out Soviet politico-economic doctrine on the basis of
Utopian Socialism. | reported rumors
in 1949 or 1950 that StarIn had asslgned €6 Malenkov the task. of

_preparing a standard work on the economic principles of Communism;
reportedly the task was entrusted to a special commission under
Malenkov's.direction. [ Jhe stories were
told in the form of a Loncs .

_/ Soviet Studies, April 1953, "A Politieal Economy in the Making,"
J. Miller. B

,3/ -Current Soviet Policies, the Current Digest of the Soviet Press.
L/ Soviet Studies, April 1953, "Dogma and Reality in Stalin's 'Eco-
nomic Problems,'" I. Deutscher. This article had been written

before Stalin's death. :
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“Stalin's recent writings offer a glimpse of the movement
of ideas going on in the Soviet ruling circles behind the half-
real and half-deceptive facade of uwniformity. It is this move-
ment that distinguishes present day Russia from the Russia of
the late thirties which was from head to foot stunned and pet-
rified after the shock of the great purges. The wovement of
ideas reflects conflicting social aspirations and preéssures

which even a monolithic regime is vwot in a position to elimi-
vate for. good "

Deutscher goes on to suggest that the discussions of the “tran- -

sition from socialism to communism,® which had been started in 1947,
- had provided an opportunity for {uplicit criticism of the regime:
. "The guesses about the future sometimes sound like reflections on
"the present ---this is not the first time that Utopla is either an
implied critique of existing society or an escape from it."

Ambassador Kennan's é.nalysis of the Economic Problems, on 20 QOc-

tober 1952, drew attention to two significant aspects of the docu-
went. Mr. Kennan described the view of the world put forward by
Stalin as "a very old-fashioned view," réminiscent of the thirties
and appearing to ignore 'all that has happened in the iuntervening

fourteen years" since Hitler's attack on Poland. Mr. Kennan went on
to say: -

"We see reflected (in this) the fact that this Soviet Gove <

ermment is today an old man's govermment, ruthless and terrible
to be sure, but iusensitive to the contemporary evolution of
.1ts external enviromment just as it is to the deeper experiences
of its own subject peoples, living in its own-past...“ﬁe o

Mr. Kennan then analyzed certain political 1mplications of
Stslin 8 discussion of the capitalist world, and noted that, jJudging
from the letters, the view Stalin had put: forwa.rd was not a unanimous
view in the Kremlin but one that lad been opposed by & group which
doubted 1ts eoundnesa -and challenged it

--——————.—a———_——-——-—'———_—-—-—————————

1/ This observation takes on considersble signiﬁcance in light of
subsequent medical analyses of Stalin's physical and emotional
condition, based on the report of Stalin's 1llness and the autopsy
report. The majority opinion of medical specialists is that
Stalin had suffered emotional changes for some time prior to his-
final illness, and these changes would have been in the direction .

of “living in the pe.st *. Thig will form the subject of a separate
paper. '

'..16-.
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"It requires no great stretch of the imagination to see
that this difference of opinion was no abstract disagreement
about the nature of capitalism; it was & policy issuve of great-
est moment. Whoever said that it was dangerous to depend on
the internal break-up of capitalism and the development of - _ '
another war between Germany and the western powers, presumably . : w
said that you had to face up to the reality of the western coa- ' |
lition and its growing strength, which weant that you bhad to :
prepare sooner or later to fight it or to come to some sort of
accommodation with 1t --- whether to do the one or the other to

- depend, we.wmust assume, on what terms you could get. Thie, '

. however, wméant negotiations --- and not only ‘demonstrative' I .
negotiations for propaganda purposes, or disarming approaches {
to weaker members of the western coalition with divisive intent, -
but actually negotiations with the wajor member of the western i
coalition: the United States. ' ‘-

"This view was obviously overruled. There are only two
ma Jor arguments that could have been used against it by the doun-
inant group whose views found Stalin s support. The first is
the argument that has now been made public: it is unnecessary
to negotiate with the Americans; their werld, with a little
help from us, will go to pleces on them anyway. The second
argument, however, way have been: 1t 16 impossible to negoti-
ate with the Americans; they are bent only on the overthrow of
. the Soviet system, by subversion or war as the case ma.y be;
they could never be induced to negotiate seriously. Plainly,
t0 the extent that this latter thesis can be established it o
overshadows and renders unnecessary further discussion of . o 1
thesis number one. But it is thesis number one vwhich has been
revealed ‘as the real center of 1deologiea1 disagreement in
Kremlin circles."” ?

THE NINE‘IEENTK PARTY CONGRESS' OCTOEER 1952

On 20 August 1952, it was e.nnounced that the long overdue Party
Congress would be convened on 6 Octo'ber.

‘There- 18 s,ome evidence which suggests that the Party Congress
was to have been held in 1948 or 1949. For example, the new name
vhich the Party adopted in October 1952, i.e., Communist Party of

- the Soviet Union, had been used by Suslov, Malenkov and others dur-
ing 1948. As noted earlier, Madame Kollontai referred in April 1949
to & forthcoming Party Congress, and there were many rumors in 1948
and 1949 that one would soon be held. Moréover, as Mr. Kennan has
pointed out, it is doubtful that the Soviet Unton would have accused
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Tito and the Yugosldavs of not having held & Party Congress for wany
years if they were not planning to hold one soon themselves. Thus
it appears wvery probable that the Congress was indeed planned at
that time, but for some unknown reason was suapended

When the Congress was ﬁnally convoked the period allowed for
the holding of preparatory regional Ccmgresses was extremsly short,
and in many cases there was evidence of haste.

The'announcement ca.llingvthe Congress outlined as su‘b.jécts ‘for

» "discussion” a series of changes in the Party statutes. Two of the »
most lwportant changes indicated were the dissolution of the Orgburo

'(one .of the three bodies which had been set up originally to handle
matters in lieu of meetings of the Central Committee) and a change
in the namwe of the Politburo. The new Presidium, as the Politburo

-wag to be called, would control the work of the Central Committee:

between plenary sessions,” and the Secretariat was to "control cur- »

_rent work, primarily organizing verification of fu].ﬁllment ocf

Party decisions and selection of cadres.”

As was the case with the other changes in the Party statutes,
these changes seemed intended to regularize already existing prac-

tices rather than to institute new ones. The Orgburo apparently had .

ceased to -function, and the authority of the Secretarist in person-
nel matters had been fucreaséd accordingly. Both the Secretariat

and the Orgburo had been controlled by the Politburo, which was re-
sponsible for final policy decisions and, in the person of Stalin,

_had exercised ultimate authority in the select:lon of personnel for

all important posts. The new statutes abolishing the Orgburo and
assigning personnel selection "primarily” to the Secretariat did not
therefore reduce the authority of Stalin and other top Politburo
(Presidivm) members over top-level personnel matters. :

The Presidium that was e.ppoin'bed at the Congress was nmch larger -

than the old Politburo and nay have been designed largely as é&n hon-
orary body. While the Politburo had 1l full members and one alter-
nate, the: Preésidium included 25 full members and 11 alternates. Thisg
loose , unwieldy body way never have met; decisions probably were 4
taken in its name by a "Buro" of the Presidium, g body whose exis-
tence was nort acknovledged until Stalin's death -/ An analysis of

1/ Nev members to the Presidium apparently did not surrender their
0ld positions. One Presidium wember, Korotchenko, was subse-
quently identified [ . |as functioning
in his old position; ‘

-18;
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the composition of the Presidium gives us some clues as to its prob-
able function, as well as to the probable wmeubership of the "Buro",

. The wmost important members of this body were the ten men from
the old 12-member Politburo: Stalin, Molotov, Malenkov, Beria, Voro-
‘'shilov, Bulganin, Kaganovich, Mikoyan, Khrushchev and Shvernik.l/ -

The only portraits prominently displayed in Red Square oun-November
Tth were of these ten leaders. The treatment these wen received in
propaganda, and references after Stalin's death to a "Buro” of the

Presidium, suggests that the Presidium as a whole was in no sense a .

ruling body, but rether that the old Politburo members constituted
11;5 nucleus. . .

. The remi.nder of the Preaidi\nn was cowposed, for the wmost part, -

" of two categories of personnel: Govermment and Party administrators
on the level Just below the old Politburo, and regiounal Party secre-
taries or wembers of the Central Party apparatus. The former group

inciuded the four remainiung Deputy Chairmen of the Council of Minis~

ters who had not been in the Politburo, Pervukhin, Saburov, Malyshev.
and Tevosyan; two members of the old Secretariat, Ponomarkenko aud -
Suslov; the Secretary of the Komsowol, Mikhailov; the head of the
Party Control Commission, M. F. Shkiryatov, and, among others,

Vyshinsky, the Minister of Foreign Affairs N a.nd Zverev, the Mi.nister-
of Fiuance.

Party Secretaries from key areas a.nd Party and propaaa.nda spe- .
cialists comprised the balance of the 36-wember Presidium. Andrianov
from Leningrad, Korotchenko and Melnikov from the Ukraine, Aristov
frow Chelyabinsk and Brezhnev from Moldavia were a few of the re-

. glonal officials to be included. From the Central Committee appa~- .
ratus ¢ame N, M. Pegov, head of the Light Industry Section. D. I.
Chesnokov, Chief Editor of Questions of Philosophy, P. F.. Yudin a.nd

M. B. Mitin represented the Pe.rty propagands specialists.

L_W ' ' hat the Politburo had
ruled & system of comittees which handled various aspects

of Soviet policy, and that top level administrators had reported to.
these committees on technical aspects of problems; the imclusion on
the Presidium of those wembers of the technical bureaucracy who pre-
‘sumably would’ ‘have reported to these coumittees suggests that much

of the enlargement of the Pregidium was a formal recognition of this .
system.

e e am e e e ma Gve e W e e e e W e e e T e e AR e e e e = e e S e

l/ Politburo weuber A, A. Andreev was d.ropped completely, while A, N.-
Kosygin was reduced to candidabe ‘wembership of the new Presidium.
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At the same time, the enlargement of the Presidium and the Sec-
retariat, as well as of the Central Committee itself, created more
honorary positions in the top hierarchy for deserving Party members.
Soviet leaders way have been concerned over the gap which had been
developing between the top and lower echelons of the Party hierarchy.

. Since the 1930's, real power had been concentrated in a small, gelf-

. perpetuating group which the Party functiopary had little hope of
ever entering. have reported that Party functian-
.aries had lost wne rIy 1deological fervor and had become primar-

iy concerned with maintaining their positions, raising their own

. standards of living, even illegally, and eluding the Party's multiple"l"

control meehanisms.

At the Cong;neas » the spate of criticism directed against bureauv-

cratism and the repeated demands for improved leadership pointed to
. the growth of this self-seeking group as one of the regime's wmost

pressing internsl problems. To alleviate this situation, the Kremlin

.was tightening controls, demanding greater Party dlscipline, and )
placing increased emphasis on education and eriticism and self-criti-
cism.

At the same time, however, new rules concerning methods of ex-

" pulsion from the Party were introduced as a means of safeguarding
the position of the members of the hierarchy. It . was stipulated
that, on the lower levels, & member was to be allowed to continue to
take a full part in the work of his cell, including its secret meet-
ings, until his exclusion bad been ratified by higher committees.

For meuwbers of the Party committees at any level, expulsion was to
be decided upon by a two-thirds majority of the plenary session of
the committee to which the member belonged. The expulsion of an
All-Union Central Committee wember was to be decided upon by a Party

- Congress, to be convened once in every four years, or by the All-

Union Central Committee between congresses. In this way, while the

nev rules made greater demands on Party members, they also mde
their positions, at least formally, more secure.

Of the five nev members added to the Secretariat, only twe had
been full members of the old Central Committee elected in 1939. The
remaining three had been alternates; one of them, N. G. Iguatov, had
been elected as:an alternate member in 1939 but excluded in 194l for
failure to discharge his duties. His return to membership, not only
on the Central Committee but on the Presidium and the Secretariat as
well, suggested the backing of some powerful figure on the old Polit-
burq level. N. M. Pegov, another of the newly elected weuwbers of
the Presidium and Secretariat, had worked in the Central Committee
apparatus since at least 1947 when be was identified as_chief__of_the_
Light Industry Section.
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_ The election to the Central Committee of 125 full members and
111 candidates broke a precedent set in the late 1920's when the
' full wembership was stabilized at 71 and the candidate wstibership at
68. Prior to this time, the Central Committee had reflected the con-

. tinued growth in Party. membership. The stabilization in 1927, des- ‘

pite.a continually growing Party membership, occurred after Stalin
had coupletely consolidated his personal supremacy by packing Party
organizations with his own appointees,

The expansion of the Central Committee in October 1952 indfcated

 the elevation of Party careerists over specialists and technicians

from other sections of soclety and clearly indicated the comparative -

mportance of the professional Party worker. This development prob-
ably increased Malenkov's influence in this body, since he was the.
Party organization specialist and therefore probably had had a great
deal to say :Ln these appointwents..
of the 156 new Central Comnittee members, some 61 full mewbers

and 17 candidates are Party careerists, as contrasted with some 15
full weuwbers and 47 candidates who have governmental assigmments.
Seventy percent of the full members of the Central Committee have
‘come up through Party ranks. Only 26 of the 236 Central Committee
_members have wmilitary coumand assigmments; in 1939 the ratio was 20
to 139, and in 1941 it was 27 to 139. After 1941 there ‘were nine
full members of the Central Committee who were career military men;
the nevw Central Committee has only five. Several officers who pre-
-viously bad been full members were dropped to alternate status.
Rather than having increased its share of :these “honorary. positions ’
the military appeared to have lost considerable’ ground. :

The belated announcement on- 30 October that Marshal G. A.
Govorov had been inasdvertently left off the list of candidate mem-
bers aroused speculation regarding the operation of behind-the-scenes
influences involving military leaders. Observers pointed out that a
mistake of this nature was inconceivable and that some disgruntled
element must have forced the addition of Govorov to the Central Com-
mittee after the initial selection. Govorov,. it will be remembered,
was apparently part of, or on the periphery of, the Zhdanov "faction,"
and he later figured in the Doctors' Plot announcement.

- The problem of succession was not dealt with overtly in the
major readjustment of Party leadership at the conclusion of the 19th
Party Congress. However, the increased importance accorded_ to the
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regional Party secretaries, as demonstrated in their election to the .

leading Party organs, reemphasized Malenkov's key position. Since

the basis of their selection appears to have been more their persomal
qualifications and counections then the significance. of the geograph-
.+1cal areas which they represented, 1t is highly probable that they

‘owed their advancement to Malenkov, as well as to Stalin. The Con-'

" gress itself was apparently dominated, at least indirectly, by Malen-
.+ kov since it was he who delivered the keynote address, i.e., the '"re-
: .port" of the Central C:onnnittee s which at past Congresses had ‘been
given by Stalin,

P&T-CONGRESS DEVEIOPMENTS POLITICAI. CRISIS

: Every repu‘nlic Congress held before the 19th All-Union COngress'
‘strongly emphasized the need for v‘igilance s stresaing that the bour-
geols nationalist rather than the actual "spy" was the root of
trouble.. Only the Congresses in Georgia; Lithuania and Estonia spe—
c:l.fica.l]y cited foreign spies -- British, American and Turkish -- as
the enemy to be watcbed, but even here the intermal enemy, the bour- .
geols nationalist and the lax persoh, was strongly condemmed.

The - uniformity of certain remarks made at these congresses, con-
cerning espionage and hostile actions by ku]aks and bourgeois nation-

alists and concerning negligence and crime by industrial wmanagers and
_ workers, pointed to the existence of one or more central Party direc-

tives on.these subjects. The cause for these criticisus seems to.
bave been 10ng-sta.nd.1ng apathy toward Party aims, neglect of respon-
sibility ‘and. fa.ilure %o react properly to the line of Great Russian
nationalism. Speeches at the 19th Congress left no doubt concerning
these problems. Malenkov, Suslov, Bulganin and Poskrebyshev, among
others, strongly warned against such errors. .The Party sta.tutes, .
vhich increased the Party wembers' duties and made 1deologica.l stmlv

‘ Amndatory, vere aimed at, erasing apathy.

Throughout November 1952 e number of arrests for crimes ra.nging

from embezzlement to cheating the pu'blic and state were announced in

the press.” On 2 December, the death penalty wag imposed on three

. persons charged. with leading a gang in “"speculation, embezzlement,

and racketeering.” This was the first application of the death pen-
alty for ‘economic crimes since this penalty had been reintroduced in
January 1950, Also in December 1952, an editorial and propa@anda .
campaign was begun against "wool gathering" and gullibility.

" Following the October Party Congreae, a number of other events
indicated continued political tension and wmaneuvering behind the
scénes,




1. On 30 October, fifteen days after the conclusion of

~ the Party Congress and the publication of the list of new Cen-

tral Comnittee menmbers, & specisl announcement stated that the
pawe of Marshall L. A. Govorov had been mistakenly camitted.
from the 1list of Centra.l Comittee members. He was added to’
the Central Committee as an alternate member. _ '

© 2. Ou 2k December; an article in Pravda by M. A. Suslov
criticized P. Fedoseev for having written articles on,Stalin's
Econonic Problems of Socialism without at the same time admit-
ting that he too had held the erroneous views denounced by
Stalin. Fedoseev's articles had appeared in Izvestia about two
weeks earlier. Fedoseev hastily apologized in public for this
error, while the Izvestia editorial board apologized for .per-
mitting the articles to run. In his article, Suslov questioned
whether or not Fedoseev was "being sly" and had really changed
his views.

3. D. T. Shepilov, ousted from Agitprop in 19’49 for nu-
merous  "shortcomings" including complicity in the Voznesensky
affair, was identified in mid-December as the new editor of -
Pravﬂa. ~ .

L, on 13 Jenuary 1953, the Doctors' Plot was»amlx_ouncéd.

5. In January 1953, couferences of economists and of so-
cial sclentists were held, in which various figuwres apologized
for baving held the incorrect views criticized by Stalin.. The
chief report at the session of the Academy of Sciences on
31 January 1953 was given by Pavel Yudin. In these conferences,
numerous speécific figures were criticized, while. Yudin, in his -
speech disclosed that the proscribed ﬂewa vere videl.y held in
high Soviet circles. - . .

6. It was learned in January that Pospelov had been re-
moved as head of the Marx-Engels-Lenin Institute and reassigned
as a Deputy Editor of Pravda. At the 21 January ceremomies
coumemorating the anniversary of Lenin's death, the principal
speech was given by N. A. Mikhailov; since 191;9, this speéch .
bad been delivered by Pospelov. Curicusly, for the first time - -,
since 1925, the Soviet press failed to publish the list of
Politburo members who had attended. -

7. On 6 February, Pravda published a vitriolic article
entitled "Revolutionary Vigilance," which was striking in the
extent to which it revealed disputes. The article lashed out
at "certain rotten theories,” i.e., that capitalist encircle-
ment no longer exists, and that capitalism will renounce its
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attempts to harm the increasingly strong Soviet Union. The ar-
ticle charged that "Soviet successes"” had given rise to moods
of complacency, self-satisfaction and conceit. In its pro-
nouncements on foreign policy, the article appeared to both
paraphrase and supplement Stalin's foreign policy discussion of

February 1952, Its sharp tone, in the context of the vigilance

campaign following the Doctors' Plot announcement, slggested
that the foreign policy disputes had not been resolved, but
rather bhad become more acute, over the year since February 1952.
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